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WADI AD DAYQAH:
Wadi Ad Dayqah is a major tourist attraction, an easy-to-reach wadi, located near Muscat
Governorate, about 90 kilometres from Wadi Adai. The water flows year long at this
picturesque wadi and recently two dams have been constructed here of which the main
dam is the largest in the Sultanate.
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ENCHANTING WADIS OF OMAN
The Sultanate is blessed with Wadis that form a unique environmental system characterised
by variety, diversity, and a wealth of natural qualities. Within this fertile environment,
populace have thrived over thousands of years. Al Omaniya Financial Services SAOG
(AOFS) shares these unique characteristics of strength, endurance, growth and
sustainability over the years and it has been proved as a valuable financial partner to
many in the Oman’s financial market.
As these blessed Wadis keep bestowing, nourishing, flourishing, wealthy and healthy life
to everyone, AOFS keeps extending its unmatched services to the nation and remains a
market leader in all its capacity over the years.
These heavenly Wadis are natural, pure, and in harmony with environment, something
that everyone can positively sense, feel and experience. AOFS shadows these in their
purity, transparency, harmony that make the organisation tall among others in the industry.
With gross assets in excess of RO 270 million and over 105,000 satisfied customers,
Al Omaniya has emerged as the largest non-banking financial services institution in
the Sultanate of Oman right from its inception. Its characteristic of deep-rootedness
and endurance have led the company to a position of leadership within its sphere of
operations. Its products and services are diverse and comprehensive touching every facet
of commercial and personal life of the people making it the preferred financial services
provider in the country.
The strength of the company is in its stakeholders, among them a strong and visionary
management, a dedicated and professional workforce and a large and loyal customer base.
These strengths translate into business strategies and productive resources that drive the
company forward, climbing ever-greater heights. Its endurance has been proven time and
again through its strong performance even in times of challenging economic situations.
Al Omaniya is well entrenched in the financial market with a large customer base. The
products and services of the company are designed to sustain and enlarge its customer
base on a year-on-year basis. Ever flowing and sparkling with fertile ideas, like the
enchanting Wadis of Oman, Al Omaniya with its strong market strategies and prudent
resource harnessing remain committed to its vision and loyal to its customers and would
continue to lead the Non banking industry as a good financial service provider.
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Our guiding philosophy is a system of
fundamental beliefs and principles of our
business. Our statement of the corporate
philosophy attempts to capture the essence.

PHILOSOPHY

We believe
We believe the purpose of our business is to create superior value for all our Stakeholders with Increased
profitability that reflects the positive aspects of effective corporate governance and evolve a culture that brings
out the best in our employees, through empowerment and self-realization.

What we want to be
AI Omaniya Financial services’ mission is to be the best financial services company through ethics and
excellence today and tomorrow.

What we want to do
It is the sum of our decision about what we will do to achieve our mission in the environment we operate.

Our strategy is to position the company as a specialized financial services company, which will serve
select markets and optimize the productivity of our capital base.
The principal components of our strategy are...

Specialized financial services company
The provision of financial services to consumers and corporate customers is the principal set of skills,

which combine our activities. The core competency of our people is to put to test into areas where our
skills are compatible with the requirements for success.

Which will serve select markets
The ability to identify potential markets where a sustainable advantage can be created is another concept

in our strategy. When selecting markets, we choose the ones where we believe we have or can establish
sustainable competitive advantages based upon a dedication to customer service, responsive decisionmaking and product innovation.

Optimize the productivity of our capital base
Balancing growth between business as that requires us to carry assets and business that produce

additional revenues and profits without adding to asset size. This produces a large stream of revenue
and profits from a given capital base than a strategy focused principally on asset growth.

WADI AL SHAB:
Wadi Al Shab is located at Tiwi in Al Sharqiyah South Governorate. It lies about
140 kilometres (87 miles) from Muscat on the Qurayat-Sur Coastal Road.
Fresh water cascades from the top of the mountains to meet the briny sea
water
its banks, creating an unique environmental.
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The environment in which we operate changes constantly. Customer needs and expectations evolve in
new directions. We review our strategies and remain flexible to prosper and grow in the years to come.
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CHAIRMAN’S REPORT
WADI DAMM:
Wadi Damm is located near Al Ayn village, Wilayat Ibri in the Al Dhahirah Governorate, and is about 45 km
28 miles) from Ibri. It’s a seasonal wadi, dry for most parts of the year. This wadi is remarkable for its
characteristic rocky formations sculpted by years of erosion. Though it retains only small amounts of
water during the dry season, the stream is distinguished by a variety of smooth rocks, out of which nature
has formed beautiful water ponds, and the smooth rocky nature is a special feature of the water ponds.
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On behalf of the Board of
Directors, It is my pleasure
to present our 19th Annual
Report, for the year ended
31st December 2016.
Khalid Said Al Wahaibi
Chairman

Oman’s Economy
In light of the impact of low oil prices and the resultant macroeconomic conditions, Oman has
witnessed a drop in GDP at current prices at the end of third quarter of 2016 and expected to
further deteriorate though GDP at constant prices is projected to be positive for the year 2017.
The banking and financial sector maintained healthy credit growth of over 10 percent while
Muscat Securities Market ended the year on a positive note with its index scaling 6.96 percent
compared to the previous year. Oman’s inflation level averaged 1.58 percent in 2016.
The budget deficit for the year 2016 is expected to be significant and the year 2017 is expected
to be a very challenging for the financial sector as the uncertainty in oil price and the deficits
continue to be major concerns for the economy. The government has announced in its annual
budget for the year 2017 some austerity measures aimed at boosting fiscal revenues by
boosting economic diversification, encouraging privatization amendments to tax legislations,
introduction of VAT etc.
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Financial Highlights
In the year 2016, the company has achieved a profit after tax of RO 5.311million as compared to
RO 6.657 million in the previous year. The profit before provision and tax stands at RO 7.873 Million
as compared to RO 9.561 Million in the year 2015. The company’s net hire purchase assets stand
at RO 238.895 million against RO 246.18 million in the previous year. The total assets size as of
31 December 2016 is RO 275.875 million.

trend in the cost of funds, expected reduction in both private and public spending, delayed payments
on the existing contracts and expected delinquencies due to reduced cash flow at the individual and
corporate borrower’s level are causes of concern. The impact of the low credit off take and the slow
economic momentum could impact the business volumes and top line growth on the one hand and
the increase in delinquencies may impact the net margins and result in dilution of the NPA coverage.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The company has provided RO 1.678 Million towards allowance for impairments and interest suspense
for the year 2016. The total provision and interest suspense against impairment stands at RO 8.723
million as of 31 December 2016. The company continues to maintain its position as the largest NBFC
in terms of assets size, net worth, market capitalization and provisioning cover for NPL’s, etc.

The Company continues to contribute for social causes as part of its Corporate Social Responsibilities.
In line with the corporate objectives during the current year under CSR, the company has contributed
towards National Celebrations, Sponsorship to Sports academy, sports events and cultural events.

The company has followed a conservative and pragmatic policy in writing new business, the focus has
been on maintaining asset quality and keeping the non-performing loans under control. We believe
that this approach is prudent and will allow the company to aggressively write business when growth
opportunities present themselves and not get bogged down by impaired assets and remedial credit
measures.

We foresee an extremely challenging year ahead. The company is resilient and cautiously optimistic
of posting satisfactory performance in 2017. The company is well aware of the current economic
scenario and has initiated proactive mitigating measures. The company is fundamentally strong with
highest net worth, clean loan book, lowest Non performing loans and good provisioning cover. As
such the company has the ability to operate competitively and post satisfactory performance in the
coming years.

Prognosis

Proposed Dividend
It is our intention to continue the sustainable and progressive dividend policy that the company has
followed since inception. Your directors have proposed a dividend of 25% for the year 2016, after
considering the CBO guidelines, comprising 17% cash and 8% unsecured compulsorily convertible
bonus stock bonds with a face value of 100 Baisas (subject to approval at the AGM), thus maintaining
its track record of paying consistent dividends without interruption since inception. This takes the
cumulative dividend paid to shareholders to 403% since inception. The unsecured compulsorily
convertible bonds will be paid from Company’s share premium account.

We assure the shareholders that, as outlined in the Report on Corporate Governance and the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report by the Chief Executive Officer, the company has
adequate internal control systems and processes and has good governance systems in all the areas
of management and has the ability to continue as a going concern. The Board also understands its
responsibility for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
IFRS and the relevant requirements of the Commercial Companies Law 1974, as amended and the
Capital Market Authority of the Sultanate of Oman.

Capital Enhancement

Acknowledgement
On behalf of the company and the Board of Directors, I would like to express my deep gratitude to
His Majesty Sultan Qaboos bin Said for his vision and leadership, which is taking the Sultanate on the
new path of development and prosperity.

During the year the company has converted twenty million fully compulsorily convertible bonds of
RO 0.100 each amounting to RO 2,000,000/- into equity by issuing 8,064,516 shares of RO 0.100
each and 16,748,020 bonds of RO 0.100 each amounting to RO 1,674,802/- into equity by issuing
6,753,235 shares of RO 0.100 each. With these additional equity, the company’s equity capital stands
at RO 26,786,354/-. In the year 2017, the fifth and final tranche of RO 2 million bonds out of the RO
10 million compulsorily convertible bonds issued in the year 2012 shall be converted into equity. In
addition the company proposes compulsorily convertible bonus stock bonds of 8% for the financial
year 2016. With the conversion of compulsorily convertible bonds, the capital will increase further in
the year 2017. The company is well capitalised and the capital adequacy stands at a healthy 24.63%.

We are also grateful to the Central Bank of Oman, Capital Market Authority and other regulatory
authorities for their guidance and support. We also thank our shareholders, bankers, dealers and
customers for their continued trust, confidence and support. Last, but not the least, we acknowledge
the dedication and commitment of the management and staff of the company.

Concerns
Diminishing margins due to intense competition from banks, liquidity crunch in the market, increasing
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Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Khalid Said Salim Al Wahaibi
Chairman of Board

Shk. Khalid Mustahil Ahmed Al Mashani
Deputy Chairman, Chairman of Executive
Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Brig. Gen. Saif Salim Saif Al Harthi
Director

Zaki Hassan Ihsan Al Naseeb
Director &
Chairman of Audit Committee

K.K. Abdul Razak
Director

Ibrahim Said Salim Al Wahaibi
Director

Sheikh Tariq Salim Mustahil Al Mashani
Director

Shikar Bipin Dharamsey Nensey
Director

Ketan Dinkarrai Vasa
Director

WADI DARBAT:
Wadi Darbat is located in Salalah in the Dhofar Governorate. This wadi curves its way through
hills and highlands until it reaches Khawr Ruri, where it empties into the Arabian Sea. The wadi
is distinguished by its virgin nature and thick botanical cover, in addition to a natural spring
and a number of caves. Its water is the source of the water in the cells of the Teeq Cave.
14
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Report On Corporate Governance
for the Year Ended 31 December 2016
COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance framework introduced vide CBO circular
no. BM/932 dated 4 February 2002, CMA regulations vide CMA circular no.E/4/2015 issued in
July 2015. Good corporate governance is about commitment to ethical business standards,
culture and ensuring that adequate standards exist to promote such behaviour through out the
organisation by a pro-active governance culture that has consistently adopted industry leading
standards.
Al Omaniya Financial Services SAOG Board upholds the highest ethical, moral and legal
standards and emphasize quality, transparency, integrity and honesty in all its dealing with
strategic and business partners which are critical to our ongoing success and enhancement of
all stakeholders’ value on a long term.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Al Omaniya Financial Services SAOG Board has an active, well-informed and independent
Board consisting of nine non-executive directors, out of which seven are independent directors
and two are non-independent. The members were elected to the Board at the Annual General
Meeting held on 23 March 2015, for a term of 3 years ending March 2018. The Board members
are qualified and experienced professionals and businessmen, who provide effective guidance,
motivation and broad based frame work, which enable the organisation to perform at high
standards.
The main responsibilities of the Board are to oversee the corporate strategies, review performance,
ensure regulatory compliance and safeguard the interest of the shareholders.
BRIEF PROFILE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Mr. Khalid Said Al Wahaibi, Chairman has a Degree in Business Administration, International
Business and majored in Arts & Political Science from Pacific Lutheran University, Tacoma,
Washington, USA. He has an experience of more than 21 years in several senior management
positions in a large conglomerate business group. He is also on the board of National Gas
Company SAOG.
Sheikh Khalid Mustahil Ahmed Al-Mashani, Deputy Chairman is a Graduate in Economics
and Masters in International Boundaries. He is also on the board of joint stock companies
including the Chairman of Bank Muscat and Dhofar International Development & Investment Co.
SAOG.

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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Mr. K.K. Abdul Razak, Director has Masters Degree in Economics and has an experience of more than three
decades in senior management position. He holds directorship in joint stock companies including Bank Muscat.
Mr. Ibrahim Said Salim Al Wahaibi, Director has a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration from the University
of San Diego, California, USA. He has experience of more than 19 years in various senior positions in a large
business conglomerate.

Mr. Anandraj Rajkumar, Deputy General Manager, Corporate Credit is a Commerce Graduate and a Chartered
Accountant and has worked in various banking and finance organisations. He has been working with the company
for the last 16 years in various capacities. He has worked with Scotia Finance Pvt Ltd. (Group of Bank of Nova
Scotia) and Trans America Apple Distribution Finance Ltd.
Details of the Board members, whom they are representing and details of their directorship in other SAOG companies
excluding Al Omaniya Financial Services are set out in Table I.

Mr. Zaki Hassan Al Naseeb, Director is MBA from (UK). He works in the government sector. He also holds
directorship in various joint stock companies.
Mr. Shikar Bipin Dharamsey Nensey, Director holds Bachelor of Science in Finance & Economics, Babson College
(School of Business) and MBA from Indian Institute of Management, Calcutta, India. He is the Managing Director
of Al Maha Financial Services LLC.
Mr. Ketan Dinkarrai Vasa, Director is a Chartered Accountant as well as CFA Charter Holder. He has more than 18
years of experience in the field of Investments and Finance. Currently, he is working as Senior Investment Analyst at
Civil Service Employees Pension Fund, formulating and executing the annual investment plan of the pension fund.
Sheikh Tariq Salim Mustahil Al Mashani, Director is a businessman having family business. He is the Chairman
of Muscat International Bitumen LLC and Rayaha Al Etifaq LLC.
Brig. Gen. Saif Salim Saif Al Harthi, Director has a Bachelor Degree in Military Science from Kansas, USA. He
has undergone National Defence Course with Association of Nasser Military Academy, Egypt and Certified Public
Accountant’s course with Arab Society of Certified Public Account in the year 1999 from Jordan. In addition he has
attended several courses in Finance and Accounts management. He has undergone higher diploma in Management
Accounting from Abington, Oxford. He has 28 years’ experience in the field of Audit, Finance, Human Resources
and Accounting and was in the Board of NBFC for seven years. He is at present with Ministry of Defence as Defence
Resource Advisor.
BRIEF PROFILE OF TOP MANAGEMENT WITH EXECUTIVE POWERS
Mr. Aftab Patel, Chief Executive Officer, is a Commerce Graduate and a Chartered Accountant with an experience
of over 2 decades in several areas of banking, financial services, investments and general management. He was
associated with reputable organization like A. F. Ferguson & Co. and ‘Associated Cement Co.’ in India. In Oman he
was involved with a major corporate group. He also holds directorship in a joint stock company.
Mr. Salim Al Awadi, Deputy Chief Executive Officer, is a management accountant, holds a degree in Business
Administration and Post Graduate Diploma in Accountancy and MBA from University of Lincoln, with a rich
experience in banking, oil and gas. He is also on the board of various companies.
Mrs. Latha Ramakrishan, Deputy General Manager – Risk Management is an Economic Graduate and a Cost
Accountant and has been working with the company for the last 20 years. She has worked in various capacities
including Chief Accountant, Finance Manager and also co-ordinated in the company’s new IT system.
Mr. Braik Al Amri, Deputy General Manager – Products & Services is a post graduate diploma holder from University
of Kent, UK and MBA from the University of Northampton, UK and has been with the company since November
2007. He has 20 years of experience in senior position. He is also on the board of various companies.
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TABLE I

Attendance
at
the last
AGM

No. of meetings attended

Number of
directorship
Executive,
in other
Nomination&
Audit
Board
public
Remuneration committee
companies
Committee

Mr. Khalid Said Al Wahaibi, Chairman,
representing Assarain Enterprise LLC

Yes

3

-

Sheikh Khalid Mustahil Al Mashani,
Deputy Chairman, representing himself

No

4

3

-

3

Mr. Ibrahim Said Al Wahaibi, Director
representing himself

No

4

3

-

-

Mr. Zaki Hassan Al Naseeb
representing himself

No

3

-

3

3

Mr. K. K. Abdul Razak, Director
representing himself

Yes

4

-

4

2

Sheikh Tariq Salim Mustahil Al Mashani,
representing Gulf Investment Services SAOG

Yes

4

3

-

-

Brig. Gen. Saif Salim Saif Al Harthi, Director
representing MOD Pension Fund)

Yes

4

3

-

1

Mr. Shikar Bipin Dharamsey Nensey
representing himself

Yes

4

3

-

-

Mr. Ketan Dinkarrai Vasa representing Civil
Service Employees Pension Fund.

Yes

4

-

4

-

2

1

BOARD MEETINGS
The meetings are generally scheduled in advance and the notice of each Board meeting is given in writing to each
director. The Board meets at least 4 times in a year with a maximum gap of 4 months between the meetings. The
Board Secretary in consultation with the Chairman prepares the detailed agenda for the meeting. The Board papers
and other explanatory notes are circulated well in advance. The Board has complete access to all information of
the Company.
During the year under review, the Board met four times. The meetings were held on 10 February, 05 June, 26
September and 30 November 2016.
The attendance of each director at the last AGM and Board meetings is set out in Table - I.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
EXECUTIVE, NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Formerly known as the Executive Committee)
The Executive Committee was reconstituted as the Executive, Nomination & Remuneration Committee at the Board
meeting held on 05 June 2016.
The Executive, Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of five Directors, who are appointed by the
Board. It is chaired by an independent director, who is nominated by the Board.
The purpose of the committee is to review the overall operations of the Company and initiate actions, as required, to
ensure smooth operation of the business functions, to assist the board in decision making in the matters concerning
the operations of the company which are beyond the authority of the Management. The committee also assist
the general meeting in the nomination of proficient directors, assist the Board in selecting the appropriate and
necessary executives for the executive management and also fixing the appropriate remuneration and incentives to
retain and attract the competent human resources for the company.
The committee shall meet at least twice in a year. The meetings may be called on the request of the Management
or by the Executive, Nomination and Remuneration Committee.
The minimum quorum is 3 members and the committee functions within defined terms of reference and the minutes
of the committee meetings are circulated and discussed with the Board.
The Committee Chairman is Sheikh Khalid Mustahil Al Mashani and other members are Mr. Ibrahim Al Wahaibi,
Sheikh Tariq Salim Al Mashani, Mr. Shikhar Bipin Dharamsey Nensey and Brig. Gen. Saif Salim Saif Al-Harthi.

INTERNAL CONTROL
The Audit Committee, on behalf of the Board has regularly reviewed the internal control environment of the Company.
The scope of internal audit is to obtain sufficient knowledge of specific business, risks and control status within the
company, obtain sufficient data to support the risk assessment of the company, review of the economy, efficiency
and effectiveness of operations and of the internal controls and to identify and test the key internal controls.
The Audit Committee has met the internal auditors during the year to review the internal audit reports,
recommendations and management comments thereupon. They have also met the external auditors to review audit
findings and management letter. The Audit Committee has also met the internal and external auditors in absence
of management as required under the code of Corporate Governance. The Audit Committee has further briefed
the Board on a quarterly basis at the board meeting about the effectiveness of internal controls in the company.
The Audit Committee and the Board are pleased to inform the shareholders that an adequate and effective internal
control system is in place and that there are no significant concerns.
Process of Nomination Of Directors
The formation of the Board of Directors is subject to the provision of the Commercial Companies Law and as per
CMA directives.
REMUNERATION MATTERS
During the year 2016, the Directors were paid sitting fees for the Board meetings, Executive, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee meetings (formerly known as the Executive Committee) and Audit Committee meetings,
fees paid to each director is as follows:
Director

Sitting Fees in RO

The Committee met 3 times during the year 2016 on 11 May, 26 September and 30 November 2016. The number
of meetings attended by the members are set out in Table - 1.

Mr. Khalid Said Salim Al Wahaibi

2,800

Shiekh Khalid Mustahil Al Mashani

3,900

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ibrahim Said Salim Al Wahaibi

3,900

The Audit Committee consists of four non-executive directors and the majority are independent directors, who are
appointed by the Board.

Mr. K.K. Abdul Razak

4,400

Sheikh Tariq Salim Al Mashani

3,900

The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance requirement.

Mr. Zaki Hassan Ihsan Naseeb

3,300

Mr. Shikar Bipin Dharamsey Nensey

3,900

Mr. Ketan Dinkarrai Vasa

4,400

Brig. Gen. Saif Salim Saif Al-Harthi

3,900

From 01 January to 04 June 2016, the Committee Chairman was Mr. Khalid Said Salim Al Wahaibi and other
members were Mr. Zaki Hassan Ihsan Al Naseeb, Mr.K.K.Abdul Razak and Mr. Ketan Dinkarrai Vasa. At the board
meeting held on 05 June 2016, the Audit Committee has been reconstituted with Mr. Zaki Hassan Al Naseeb as the
Chairman and other members are Mr. Khalid Said Al Wahaibi, Mr. K. K. Abdul Razak and Mr. Ketan D. Vasa.
All the members of the Audit Committee are qualified and experienced in the fields of finance and accounts. The
quorum for the Audit Committee is two members. The Committee meets at least 4 times in the year. The working
plan of the committee is approved by the Board. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as per Annexure
3 of the code of Corporate Governance.
The Audit Committee met four times during the year 2016 on 10 February, 17 April, 26 July and 26 October 2016
and the number of meetings attended by the members are set out in Table - 1.
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The Board has proposed RO 165,600/- as Directors’ Remuneration subject to the approval of the Shareholders at
the AGM.
The gross remuneration paid to the top 5 officers of the Company including variable components, traveling expenses
outside Sultanate of Oman and cost of local transport during the year 2016 was RO.1,658,121/-.
The severance notice period for these officers ranges from one to three months with end of service benefits payable
as per Omani Labour Law.

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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(b) The distribution of Shareholding as of 31 December 2016 is as under:

DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE COMPANY
The Company has complied with all the regulatory requirements during the year 2016.

S.No.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE SHAREHOLDERS
Al Omaniya Financial Services SAOG has 317 shareholders; most of the major shareholders are institutional
investors. The main channel of communication is through the annual report, which is mailed to them well before the
AGM. The quarterly and annual results of the Company are published in both the Arabic and English newspapers.
Quarterly results are mailed to the shareholders based on their request.

Sharholder Name

No. of Shares

%

1

MUSCAT OVERSEAS

48,470,689

18.10

2

MOD PENSION FUND

28,185,840

10.52

3

CIVIL SERVICE EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND

28,107,580

10.49

4

HINA BIPIN DHARAMSEY

25,959,177

9.69

5

SH. SALIM MUSTAHIL AL MASHANI

24,097,862

9.00

6

ASSARAIN ENTERPRISE LLC

19,835,098

7.41

The AGM is the principle forum for face-to-face communication with the shareholders and the Company. The Board
acknowledges its responsibilities towards the shareholders and encourages open dialogue with them, whenever
approached. The Company has its website www.aofsoman.com.

7

GULF INVESTMENT SERVICES

12,881,794

4.81

8

HASSAN IHSAN NASEEB

11,202,589

4.18

9

BANK MUSCAT

10,686,347

3.99

Management Discussion and Analysis is given as part of annual report, which assures the fair presentation of the
financial statements.

10

PUBLIC AUTHORITY FOR SOCIAL INSURANCE

6,868,560

2.56

307

OTHER SHAREHOLDERS

51,568,006

19.25

267,863,542

100.00

317

MARKET DATA
a) The monthly high/low price of Company’s share during the year 2016 and performance in comparison to MSM financial
sector index is given in the graph below:
PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY COMPARED WITH FINANCIAL SECTOR INDEX

TOTAL SHARES

outstanding COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE BONDS:
The Outstanding Compulsorily Convertible Bonds, which would impact the equity on its conversion and the terms of
conversion of such bonds are explained in detail in the Notes to the audited financial statements.
Professional Profile of the statutory auditor
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Dec -16

Nov -16

Oct -16

Sep -16

Aug -16

Jul -16

Jun -16

400

May -16

250

Apr -16

4400

Mar -16

260

Feb -16

4800

Jan -16

270

The shareholders of the Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditors for the year 2016. EY is
a global leader in assurance, tax, transaction and advisory services. EY is committed to doing its part in building
a better working world. The insights and quality services which EY delivers help build trust and confidence in the
capital markets and in economies the world over.
The MENA practice of EY has been operating in the region since 1923 and employs over 6,500 professionals.
EY has been operating in Oman since 1974 and is a leading professional services firm in the country. EY MENA
forms part of EY’s EMEIA practice, with over 4,400 partners and approximately 1,00,000 professionals. Globally,
EY operates in more than 150 countries and employs 231,000 professionals in 700+ offices. Please visit ey.com for
more information about EY.
Ernst & Young in Oman is accredited by the Capital Market Authority (CMA) to audit joint stock companies (SAOGs).
During the year 2016, Ernst & Young billed an amount of RO 12,000/- towards professional services rendered to the
Company for audit services.
The Company has prepared the financial statements in accordance with the applicable standards and rules and it has
also complied with the provisions of the Corporate Governance and has reported it as per reporting requirements of
Capital Market Authority. The Board hereby acknowledges that there is no material things that affect the continuation
of the company and its ability to continue its operations during the next financial year.

KHALID SAID AL WAHAIBI

AFTAB PATEL

Chairman

Chief Executive Officer

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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Aftab Patel

MANAGEMENT TEAM

Chief Executive Officer

Salim Abdullah Al Awadi
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WADI TIWI:
Wadi Tiwi is one of the most popular wadis in the country. It’s located about halfway between Quriyat and
Sur with so much to see along this coastal route, from the Bimmah Sinkhole to Fins beach and its string of
emerald pools and thick plantations, Wadi Tiwi almost rivals Wadi Shab in beauty, especially in the spring
when it turns into vivid green. Known as the ‘Wadi of Nine Villages’.
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WADI BANI KHALID

Overview
Al Omaniya Financial Services (AOFS) has completed
two decades of successful operations as a Non-Banking
Financial Institution, offering a comprehensive range of
financial products. Over its tenure of 20 years, the company
has established a strong market presence with good systems
and processes and has crossed many significant milestones.
It continues to demonstrate its excellence in its business
strategies as a leading player in the country by offering a
diverse range of products and services.

The following discussion and analysis provides information that the management believes,
is useful in understanding AOFS’s operating results and financial position. The discussion
is based on AOFS’s continuing operations and should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this report.
Certain statements in the MD&AR describing the company’s views, objectives, projections,
estimates, expectations, etc. may be extrapolative within the ambit of applicable laws
and regulations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed or implied.
Important factors like changes in government regulations, tax laws, interest rates in
the domestic and international markets, demand and supply of capital goods, etc. may
influence the company’s operating results.

Aftab Patel

CEO, Al Omaniya Financial Services
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Global economic growth remains subdued at 3.1 percent in 2016, with most of the major economies experiencing
uncertainty, the growth in emerging economies remained more or less positive. The outcome of the UK Vote (Brexit),
which surprised global financial markets, initially worsened the global outlook for 2016-17 but within a short period
of time the markets largely recovered. The US Federal Reserve’s decision to hold off rate hikes through much of
2016 relieved some of the pressure on emerging markets currencies, but it definitely faces the delicate task of raising
the interest rates in the near future. The historically low oil prices have unfortunately benefitted neither oil exporting
nor importing economies. The oil exporting economies have seen their revenues shrinking significantly while the
importing economies have not been able to benefit from the low prices because of a host of other economic
ailments including chronic NPA and other problems in the banking sectors, unfavourable trade balances, significant
reliance on debt in both the public and private sectors, significant public expenditure that is difficult to curtail with
austerity measures etc. Therefore the world economic outlook continues to be less optimistic and volatility will be a
major cause for concern.
The major risk factors affecting global growth are:
(i)

Increase in financial market volatility

(ii)

Increased Chinese debts and a possible further devaluation of Yuan

(iii) Economic distress from geopolitical factors
(iv) Stress in cash flow and delinquency
(v) Unemployment in advanced economies
(vi) US Federal Reserve’s decision on tightening the fed rate
(vii) US Dollar appreciation creating balance sheet challenges for dollar debtors.
Domestic Economy
Oil export being the major revenue source of Oman economy, low oil prices have severely impacted the revenues
resulting in ballooning the budget deficit. Despite the government’s efforts to diversify the economy away from oil,
the Sultanate’s economic outlook remains challenging due to the steep drop in oil prices. This has impacted the
various segments of the economy leading to an overall slowdown in the economic activities. As a result of restricted
investment on projects, the demand for capital goods has shrunk. This has also resulted in increased delinquency
risk, increased cost of funds and shrinking credit offtake.
The government has the demanding task of balancing the austerity measures and rationalization measures to curb
spending and boost revenues, whilst simultaneously working to maintain financing for various long-term capital
projects. Besides spending cuts, the government continues to explore new streams of revenue to offset the big
drop in oil revenues and there are strong indicators of the government embarking on a serious drive to correct fiscal
drawbacks. From non-hydrocarbons sector, tourism is emerging as one of the key promising sector in the Sultanate.
The government will continue to prioritize infrastructure investment, including in tourism, airports and ports. The
Tanfeedh—the National Program for Enhancing Economic Diversification—officially started the activity of its key
workshops, centered on enhancing economic activity in the three main areas of tourism, manufacturing and logistics
and the long term results are going to be positive.
Non Banking Finance Companies Sector
The industry has faced major challenges during the year 2016, apart from the stiff competition from commercial
banks and Islamic banks including the Islamic windows of commercial banks in the retail and SME segment.
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The Non Banking Sector has witnessed a challenging year as the tightening of liquidity in the market has raised the
cost of short-term funding for financial institutions and also raised the fears about steep hike in interest rates amidst
prevailing depressed business sentiments. Against the backdrop of the challenging economic situation, the sector
is facing a herculean task in maintaining abundant liquidity and a healthy asset quality.
There will be higher stress on the NBFCs to sustain the earnings and profitability with the increase in non-performing
assets, shortage of talent and increase in staffing costs. The stress on the net margin of NBFCs due to the liquidity
crunch in the local market and the consequent increase in the cost of funds coupled with increase in FED rates
is another major cause for concern. Companies with a sustainable business model with an emphasis on higher
efficiency, risk diversification, prudence and innovation will succeed in the long run.
Opportunities and Threats
Capitalising on the growth opportunities, the company has strategically redefined and established itself as a core
corporate lender with various new products such as working capital loans, project finance, bills discounting apart
from the primary asset financing.
During the year 2016, though the company continued its dealer tie ups, the market share in the retail segment has
been shrinking due to the aggressive competitions from the existing banks and Islamic banks. The current year
has witnessed a steep fall in the demand for automobiles both in the personal and commercial segment due to the
economic impact of lower oil price and subsidy cuts.
Maintaining Asset Quality is in the DNA of the company. The delay in government spending and the slowdown in
project payments impacted the cash flows of the major contracting firms as well as sub-contractors trickling down the
line at the individual level also. This may impose
Instalment Finance Receivables
a major systemic risk in the financial system
leading to deterioration in the asset quality,
restrictive credit sanctioning and increase in
the-non-performing loans and higher provision
requirement for bad and doubtful debts.
Though the fiscal and economic policies of the
government for the year 2017 are prudent, the
slump in the energy segment, reduced spending
on infrastructure and delay in payments on the
existing projects would affect the economy and
employment and could limit the efficacy of fiscal
policies.
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Hence, the company has been very cautious in writing business this year. AOFS’s two decades of presence in the
NBFC segment, its rich experience, portfolio data, and innovative business model have helped to create a niche
and its superior risk appraisal mechanisms, product delivery and customer service translated into retention of high
quality assets.
The company has improved productivity on many fronts during the year, increased and innovatively structured its
capital, tied up new facilities and increased the existing facilities from local and off shore banks at competitive rates,
rationalised costs and improved collection mechanisms leading to lower NPA ratios; the best in the industry.
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bulk of company’s assets has been performing well, the portfolio is distributed over a wide industry and service
segments.

Net Profit
8.0
Figures in RO million

The company has over the years, planned the
necessary human resources, enhanced the
capital base and improved its IT systems. The
company has made new investment in hardware
during the earlier years and continuously seeking
to upgrade and develop IT system to address the
need of new products and services like mobile
app etc. This will require new investment and
additional costs in the coming year.
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advantageous NPA coverage of 371% will help in
the current economic scenario to tide over any unforeseen losses. However, shrinking cash flows and tight liquidity
could increase delinquencies which might warrant higher provisioning.
The interest rate on borrowings is another major challenge. We have successfully overcome this challenge due to
our long term vision of reducing mismatch in our balance sheet as our policy has been to maintain a prudent ratio
of short term vs. long term borrowing.
Changes in the laws and regulations, including their interpretation or implementation could affect the company’s
financing opportunities and may limit the products or services it can provide.
On a macro level, oil prices remaining at the current low level will be a key challenge for the Omani economy in
general. Continued low oil prices depleting the current surpluses and the consequent reduction in Government
spending on infrastructure are the bottlenecks for the continued growth in the company’s business.
However, the company is proactive, confident and properly geared up to meet the challenges and exploit the available
opportunities for a profitable and sustained growth both in the short as well as long run without compromising on
the quality.

The retail asset financing product under the brand name ‘Lifeline’ offers a variety of specialised finance
products for the self-employed, salaried individuals, transport operators, small and large businesses, etc.
The ‘Lifestyle’ loan segment (micro credit program) continues to do well and the company is in the process of
extending the network and expanding the customer base.
To strengthen its geographical presence and to cater to the needs of its customers, in addition to the two branches
at Sohar and Nizwa, the company is doing a feasibility study for opening more branches.
The company regularly monitors the product mix to ensure a balanced risk portfolio, leading to top line growth,
enhanced revenue, healthy profitability and insulation from interest rate fluctuations.
Our service has the unique attributes of speed, transparency, quick response, empathy, understanding customer
concerns and ethical fair practices. We endeavour to build products and services around customer needs. Our
deliverables of simple documentation, quick credit approvals, competitive interest rates and other value added
services have created a large satisfied clientele for the company.
Credit Rating
Moody’s Investors Service, as per their credit opinion dated 26 October 2016 based on the un-audited published
results as of 30 June 2016, has maintained the global scale “Ba3” “local and foreign currency corporate family
ratings (CFR)” for the company. The ratings convey a negative outlook for the Company. Moody’s stated that the
company established in 1997, is a boutique finance house providing conventional leasing services to corporates,
SMEs and individuals. Moody’s ratings reflect Oman’s softening operating environment, the company’s strong
asset quality moderated by high borrower concentrations, high capitalization levels and solid profitability metrics
reflecting a growing franchise. These strengths were corroborated by improved liquidity buffers combined with high
asset encumbrance.
Business Continuity Plan

Product Wise Performance

The ‘Corporate’ Loan which accounts for the
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Net Worth
80

Figures in RO million

The company expanded its product portfolio
in the earlier years by successfully entering the
project financing space through consortium
financing in addition to the existing product lines.
The company has diversified into new product
lines such as working capital, project financing,
bills discounting and debt factoring, offering
these products on a major scale to its existing
customers as well as new customers. This has
helped in reducing the maturity mismatch as the
tenure of these products is short to medium term.

Based on the Board approved Business Continuity Plan (BCP), and based on Business Impact analysis, the company
has tested the BCP successfully from its BCP site at Nizwa on the 22nd of December 2016.
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Risks and Concerns
Managing risks means understanding the static and dynamic risks involved in our businesses and assessing the
potential impacts and likelihood of each risk. The overall risk governance framework of the company includes strong
corporate oversight, independent internal audit function and well laid down policies and processes.
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The company has the necessary BCP set up at its alternate site at Nizwa and back up and disaster recovery
operations for its IT Systems were tested and found robust. The company has the capacity to continue major
operational activities in the unfortunate event of major disruptions with minimum down time.
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The company is exposed to strategic risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.
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Strategic risk is the potential for loss arising from ineffective business strategies, the absence of integrated business
strategies, the inability to implement integrated business strategies, and the inability to adapt the strategies to
changes in the business environment.

The company has put in place a mechanism to minimize operational risk by way of effective Internal Control
Systems, Systems Review and an on–going Internal Audit programme. The company has a well balanced in house
Internal Audit department and the internal auditor undertakes comprehensive audits and reports directly to the Audit
Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the internal audit reports, the adequacy of the
internal controls and reports on the same to the Board.

The company’s overall strategy is established and approved by the Board in consultation with the Management
and the Senior Executive Team. The most significant strategic risks faced by the company are identified, assessed,
managed and mitigated by Senior Management, with oversight by the Board.

Financial Performance 2016

Strategic Risk

Performance review

(in RO ‘000)

Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and will cause the
other party to incur a financial loss.

Details

Years
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Total income

14,436

17,045

18,738

18,917

19,198

18,963

Interest expenses

(3,661)

(4,533)

(5,361)

(4,964)

(4,487)

(6,256)

Net Income

10,775

12,512

13,377

13,953

14,711

12,707

Operating expenses

(3,337)

(3,974)

(4,183)

(4,634)

(5,150)

(4,834)

Provision for doubtful debts

(1,970)

(2,128)

(2,045)

(1,959)

(2,000)

(1,601)

5,468

6,410

7,149

7,360

7,561

6,272

(637)

(754)

(1,081)

(880)

(904)

(961)

4,831

5,656

6,068

6,480

6,657

5,311

Gross HP assets

161,379

212,008

233,878

235,917

254,838

247,618

Less: - Provisions

(6,023)

(6,754)

(7,143)

(7,651)

(8,658)

(8,723)

Net HP assets

155,356

205,254

226,735

228,266

246,180

238,895

Total Assets

159,191

210,248

239,946

241,584

274,276

275,875

Net bank borrowings

93,274

131,717

144,398

145,820

157,835

153,370

The company manages this risk by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.

Net worth

45,466

58,011

61,047

63,619

66,831

67,944

Internal Control and Adequacy

Earnings per share (stated in 100 Baisas
per Share for comparative purpose)

0.030

0.032

0.028

0.028

0.026

0.020

2.05

2.27

2.37

2.29

2.36

2.26

13.95%

13.79%

12.26%

12.12%

11.65%

8.69%

3.73%

3.19%

3.05%

3.24%

3.40%

3.52%

25%

25%

25%

25%

25%

*25%

The company attempts to control credit risk by setting limits for individual borrowers, monitoring credit exposures,
limiting transactions with specific counter parties and assessing continually the creditworthiness of counter parties.
The default risk for the company is at an acceptable level. The company has substantially lowered its NPA percentage
and has one of the lowest NPA levels in the industry.
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. The business of
lending has an inherent risk of liquidity arising from the mismatch of tenure of funds borrowed Vis a Vis lent, in
addition to unforeseen adverse recovery patterns.
To limit the liquidity risk, the Management through their carefully drawn up strategies, has diversified sources of
funds, avoids undue concentration on a single lender, periodically reviews cash flows and manages its collection
in a systematic manner. As the company anticipated that liquidity risk is a major cause for concern for the year,
in addition to the above steps, the company has kept a liquidity buffer throughout the year by way of deposits, in
addition to having committed unutilised lines of credit.
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability or the fair
values of financial instruments. The company is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in
the amounts of assets and liabilities and off balance sheet instruments that mature or re-price in a given period.

The company believes that Internal Control is a necessary concomitant of the principle of governance and has made
conscious efforts to ensure quality in its deliverables and processes.
The company has Board committees and Management committees, which are charged with strategic decision
making, efficient and effective operations of the company and ensuring that good corporate governance policies,
conforming to regulatory requirements are in place.

Profit before taxation
Taxation
Net profit

Debt Equity ratio (net bank borrowing)
Return on net worth
Provision as a percentage of assets
Dividend %

The company has a well defined organization structure, clearly defined authority levels well documented policies
and guidelines approved by the Board and good in house IT systems to ensure process efficiency.
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* Dividend for 2016 (17% cash and 8% Compulsorily Convertible bonus stock bonds).

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)

ANNUAL REPORT - 2016

33

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Operational Performance

Future Outlook

The year 2016 again saw the company retain its position as the largest NBFC in terms of asset size, net worth, asset
quality and market capitalisation. Looking back, we take pride in the achievements of the company as a leading
player in the industry with strong fundamental ratios, in earnings, assets and lowest NPA’s. Today’s position has
been achieved with careful planning and clear strategies, supported by sound vision and guidance by the Board.
The company with a cautious approach continues to focus on quality asset growth. During the year the company’s
main focus was to maintain the quality of assets and keep the non performing loans at the minimum.

The company has today reached its leadership position in the industry after undergoing many business cycles under
challenging economic circumstances. The company has also capitalized every single growth opportunity with its
enviable strengths namely,

The company’s Loan Book recorded a marginal fall of 2.96% from last year and stands at RO 238.9 million at the year
end. The gross revenue stood at RO 18.963 million as compared to RO 19.198 million in the previous year. Apart
from increase in cost of funds, the spreads are lower due to comparatively low yields in all the product segments
and intense competition from local commercial banks and Islamic banks. In spite of the above, the company was
able to register a profit of RO 5.31 million for the year 2016 producing earnings per share of 0.020 baisas on the
increased share capital
For all the regulatory purposes, the company’s net worth stands at RO 67.944 million, 1.67% higher than the
previous year figure of RO 66.831 million. The Book Value / Net Asset Value of the company’s share stands at RO
0.235 per share, which is the highest in the industry.

• Sound and innovative capital structure.
• Superior service to its loyal customers.
• Novel and valuable integrated business model.
• Lesser delinquency ratio due to very effective collection mechanism.
• Good provisioning for impairment.
• Timely product diversification.
• Consistent earnings.
• Highly automated IT real time systems and processes.
We remain focused on maintaining quality assets with the objective of consistent returns for all our stakeholders.
Our priorities for the coming year are:
• Cautious lending policies in all existing product lines.
• Products structuring & better packaging to suit the market demand.

The non-performing loans of the company are under control and the company has more than adequate provisions
as per the Central Bank of Oman’s requirements as well as the requirements of IFRS. The Company’s NPL ratio is
at 0.94% and is the lowest among the banking and non banking sector. The cumulative provision including reserved
finance interest represents 371% of the gross impaired loans.

• To manage the liquidity and costs judiciously to ensure sustainable earnings and profitability.

Human Resources

From inception till date the company has been delivering on its commitment of increasing shareholders’ wealth.
It’s a relentless pursuit of excellence and a commitment to continual improvement. Our endeavor is to constantly
seek out new processes, products and efficiencies aimed at making things better for our customers. Our success
is attributable to the dedication of our employees and our continued focus on keeping commitments to our
stakeholders, viz. shareholders, customers and the community.

Employees are a critical part of our competitive advantage. We have sound Human Resource policies, on and off the
job training, counselling and a scientifically designed reward system, which helps us to create a dependable, highly
skilled and motivated work force. Despite higher turnover during the year the company maintained its Omanisation
percentage.
Our Customer
AOFS is committed to delivering superior value through a powerful, distinctive branding which ensures better
customer retention, better value and increased business with each customer. Our huge client base stands testimony
to this fact.

• Continue our leadership excellence and continue training and retaining the highly skilled and diverse work force.
• Offer superior delivery mechanism and personalised customer service to build customer loyalty and superior
brand positioning.

The management believes that weakening economy has an impact on all businesses and industries. The management
continues to closely monitor economic conditions and indicators including interest rates, delinquency and capital
markets. The sound guidance and encouragement from our Board of Directors has played a significant role in the
continued growth and profitability. Our aim is to build on our heritage of success and to make AOFS, the leading
financial service provider for today and the next generation.

Capital Structure
The Company’s objective of the capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order
to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in business conditions. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes during the current year.
The Company’s lead regulator Central Bank of Oman sets and monitors capital requirement as a whole. In implementing
current capital requirement, the Central Bank of Oman requires the Company to progressively increase its minimum
paid up share capital by RO 1 million per year to reach RO 25 million by April 2017. The Company’s current paid up
capital is RO 26.786 which is well above the regulatory requirement of RO 25 million.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December
2016

2015

RO

RO

Instalment finance income

17,569,163

18,593,853

Interest expense

(6,256,186)

(4,486,685)

Net instalment finance income

11,312,977

14,107,168

Notes

Other income

3

1,394,163

604,489

Operating expenses

4

(4,670,700)

(4,985,945)

8

(1,601,000)

(2,000,000)

10

(163,671)

(164,549)

6,271,769

7,561,163

(960,701)

(904,287)

5,311,068

6,656,876

Provision for impairment of instalment finance receivables, net
Depreciation
Profit before tax

Income tax expense

5

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year

Basic earnings per share

21

0.020

0.026

Diluted earnings per share

22

0.019

0.026

The attached notes on pages 45 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the Independent Auditors’ is set forth on page 37-40.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 31 December 2016

For the year ended 31 December 2016
Notes

2016
RO

2015
RO

6

33,522,496

25,044,122

Deposit with the Central Bank of Oman

7

250,000

210,000

Instalment finance receivables

8

238,895,308

246,179,625

Other assets and prepayments

9

1,202,276

735,062

Property and equipment

10

1,199,820

1,314,836

Deferred tax asset

5

805,118

792,041

275,875,018

274,275,686

Total assets

Share
premium
RO

22,967,873

5,297,034

Notes

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Share
capital
RO

Balance at 1 January 2015
Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year
Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Issue of compulsory convertible bonus
stock bonds (Series vii)
Dividend paid

-

19

Liabilities
Over draft and short term loans

11

76,000,000

69,197,998

Deposits

12

8,878,519

9,506,372

Term loans

13

110,892,750

113,681,440

Compulsorily convertible bonds

20

5,065,808

7,512,232

Other liabilities

14

11,059,346

13,795,718

Income tax payable

5

1,100,409

1,263,493

212,996,832

214,957,253

Conversion of compulsorily convertible
bonus stock bonds (Series iii)
Conversion of compulsorily convertible
bonds (Series iv)-third tranche
Transfer to exchange reserve

(1,837,430)

7,655,957

Retained
earnings
RO

Total
RO

701,546 18,311,315 54,933,725

-

-

6,656,876

6,656,876

-

-

- (1,837,430)
(3,445,177) (3,445,177)

-

-

-

-

459,357

(459,357)

-

-

-

382,746

627,693

-

-

-

20

757,576

1,242,424

-

-

-

18

-

-

-

925,680

(925,680)

-

-

(533,227)

533,227

-

-

-

4,337,137

8,189,184

Issue of bonus shares

Liabilities and equity

-

Legal Exchange
reserve
reserve
RO
RO

Transfer to legal reserve
Balance at 31 December 2015

24,567,552

1,010,439
2,000,000

1,627,226 20,597,334 59,318,433

Share capital

15

26,786,354

24,567,552

Share premium

16

3,825,158

4,337,137

Profit and total comprehensive income for
the year
Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Issue of compulsory convertible bonus
stock bonds (Series viii)

Legal reserve

17

8,928,785

8,189,184

Dividend paid

19

-

-

-

-

Exchange reserve

18

1,605,971

1,627,226

Issue of bonus shares

19

737,027

(737,027)

-

-

-

20

675,324

999,478

-

-

-

1,674,802

20

806,451

1,193,549

-

-

-

2,000,000

18

-

-

-

(21,255)

-

(21,255)

-

(739,601)

739,601

-

-

-

3,825,158

8,928,785

Total liabilities
Equity

Retained earnings

21,731,918

20,597,334

Total equity

62,878,186

59,318,433

275,875,018

274,275,686

0.235

0.241

Total liabilities and equity
Net assets per share

Conversion of compulsorily convertible
bonus stock bonds – (Series-vi)
Conversion of compulsorily convertible
bonds (Series iv) - fourth tranche
Reversal of exchange reserve

-

-

Transfer to legal reserve
The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 12 February 2017 and are signed on their behalf by:

Chairman

Director

Balance at 31 December 2016

26,786,354

-

(1,228,378)

The attached notes on pages 45 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.

The report of the Independent Auditors’ is set forth on page 37-40.

The report of the Independent Auditors’ is set forth on page 37-40.
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-

5,311,068

5,311,068

-

-

- (1,228,378)
(4,176,484) (4,176,484)
-

1,605,971 21,731,918 62,878,186

As approved by the regulatory authority and more fully explained in note 20, the unsecured fully compulsorily convertible
bonds amounting to RO 5,065,808 (2015: RO 7,512,232) are treated as part of the Company’s networth for computing
all regulatory limits. Accordingly, the networth as of 31 December 2016 for all regulatory purposes is RO 67,943,994
(2015: RO 66,830,665).

The attached notes on pages 45 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

Notes

2016
RO

2015
RO

6,271,769

7,561,163

Operating activities
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation

10

163,671

164,549

Profit on disposal of property and equipment
Reserved finance interest
Provision for impairment of instalment finance receivable - net

3
8
8

(30)
77,215
1,601,000

(7,481)
36,600
2,000,000

8,113,625

9,754,831

Instalment finance receivable

5,584,847

(19,949,833)

Other assets and prepayments

(467,214)

(107,975)

(2,736,372)

2,787,611

(40,000)

(40,000)

(1,136,862)

(879,864)

9,318,024

(8,435,230)

(48,905)

(96,747)

280

9,205

(48,625)

(87,542)

Operating profit before working capital changes:

Other liabilities
Capital deposit with Central Bank of Oman
Income tax paid
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities
Investing activities
10

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities
Short term loans (net)

6,802,002

(14,082,002)

Deposits repaid (net)

(627,853)

(47,450)

(2,788,690)

40,672,195

(4,176,484)

(3,445,177)

Net cash (used in) / from financing activities

(791,025)

23,097,566

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

8,478,374

14,574,794

25,044,122

10,469,328

33,522,496

25,044,122

Term loans (repaid) / received (net)
Dividend paid

19

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year

The attached notes on pages 45 to 73 form an integral part of these financial statements.
The report of the Independent Auditors’ is set forth on page 37-40.
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Al Omaniya Financial Services SAOG (“the Company”) is an Omani general joint stock Company, licensed by the Central
Bank of Oman and registered under the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman. The Company is engaged
in the hire purchase and lease finance for motor vehicles and other assets, debt factoring, bills discounting, bridge loans,
working capital loans and project & construction loans (construction loans restricting to manufacturing including warehousing
only). The Company’s registered office is at PO. Box 1087, Jibroo, Postal Code 114, Muscat, Sultanate of Oman.
The Company operates in the Sultanate of Oman and employed 156 employees as of 31 December 2016 (2015: 161). The
Company’s shares and compulsory convertible bonds are listed on Muscat Securities Market.
2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis. The accounting records are maintained in Rial Omani
which is the functional and reporting currency for these financial statements.
2.2 Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), applicable regulations of the Central Bank of Oman, applicable requirements of the Commercial
Companies Law of 1974, as amended and the Capital Market Authority of the Sultanate of Oman.
2.3	Use of estimates and judgements

Purchase of property and equipment
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6

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, estimates that
involve uncertainties and judgements which have a significant effect on the financial statements are set out below:
2.3.1Impairment losses on instalment finance receivables
The Company reviews its individually significant loans and advances at each reporting date to assess whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the statement of profit or loss. In particular, judgment by management is required
in the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the impairment loss. In estimating
these cash flows, the Company makes judgments about the borrower’s financial situation and the net realisable value of
collateral. These estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting
in future changes to the allowance.
Instalment finance receivables that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually
insignificant loans and advances are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to
determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there is an objective evidence but
whose effects are not yet evident. The collective assessment takes account of data from the loan portfolio (such as
credit quality, levels of arrears, credit utilisation, loan to collateral ratios etc.), concentrations of risks and economic data
(including levels of unemployment, real estate price indices and the performance of different individual groups).

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3.2 Taxes

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable
income. Given the wide range of business relationships and nature of existing contractual agreements, differences arising
between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable
estimates, for possible consequences of finalisation of tax assessments of the Company. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax assessments and differing interpretations of tax regulations
by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
2.4 (a) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company has adopted all of the new and revised standards and interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and effective for periods beginning on 1 January 2016. The
following new standards and amendments became effective as of 1 January 2016:
•

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

•

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

•

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

•

Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

•

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

•

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle
- IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
- IAS 19 Employee Benefits
- IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting
The adoption of those standards and interpretations has not resulted in any major changes to the Company’s accounting
policies and has not affected the amounts reported for the current and prior periods.
2.4 (b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
The following new standards and amendments have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
but are not yet mandatory for the year ended 31 December 2016:

2.4 (b) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted (continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments that replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS
9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge
accounting, retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge
accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.
IFRS 9 requires the Company to record expected credit losses on its installment finance receivables, either on a 12-month
or lifetime basis. The Company expects an impact on its equity and will perform a detailed analysis which considers all
reasonable and supportable information, including forward-looking elements to determine the extent of the impact.
The Company plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a more structured
approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede
all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective application is required for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing
the impact of IFRS 15 and plan to adopt the new standard on the required effective date. The Company is considering the
clarifications issued by the IASB in an exposure draft in July 2015 and will monitor any further developments.
IFRS 16 Leases
The IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases (IFRS 16), which requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for most leases.
For lessors, there is little change to the existing accounting in IAS 17 Leases. The Company will perform a detailed
assessment in the future to determine the extent. The new standard will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, provided the new revenue standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, has been applied, or is applied at the same date as IFRS 16.
Other IASB Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet mandatory, and have not been early
adopted by the Company, are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.
2.5  Summary of significant accounting polices
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Company to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

•

IFRS 9, Financial Instruments effective for annual periods commencing 1 January 2018;

•

IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers: effective for annual periods commencing 1 January 2018;

2.5.1 Interest income

•

IFRS 16, Leases: effective for annual periods commencing 1 January 2019;

•

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

•

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes

•

Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Interest income is recorded at the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest, which is doubtful of recovery, is reserved and excluded from income
until it is received in cash. Penal charges and other fees are recognised when earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.5  Summary of significant accounting polices (continued)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5.2 Directors’ remuneration

2.5.7 Compulsorily convertible bonds
Compulsorily convertible bonds are non derivative financial instruments for which the entity is obliged to deliver a variable
number of the entity’s own share. These are recorded as financial liabilities until conversion to shares and are carried on the
statement of financial position at their principal cost. Interest is charged as it accrues, with unpaid amounts included in other
liabilities. On conversion, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.

2.5 Summary of significant accounting polices (continued)

The Board of Directors’ remuneration is accrued as an expense within the limits specified by the Capital Market Authority
and the requirements of the Commercial Companies Law of the Sultanate of Oman for the year except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised directly to other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in equity.
2.5.3 Taxation
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Taxation is provided in accordance with Omani fiscal regulations.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous years.
Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case it is recognised in equity.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are calculated using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date.

2.5.8 Bank borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
2.5.9 Deposits
Customer deposits are carried at cost less amounts repaid.
2.5.10 Other liabilities
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.
2.5.11  Employee’s end of service benefits

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets/liabilities is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised.
2.5.4 Cash and cash equivalents

End of service benefits are accrued in accordance with the terms of employment of the Company’s employees at the
reporting date, having regard to the requirements of the Oman Labour Law. Employee entitlements to annual leave and
leave passage are recognised when they accrue to employees and an accrual is made for the estimated liability arising as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the reporting date.

2.5.5 Instalment finance receivable

Contributions to a defined contribution retirement plan and occupational hazard insurance for Omani employees in
accordance with the Omani Social Insurances Law of 1991 and its subsequent amendments are recognised as an expense
in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred.

Installment finance debtors are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any amounts written
off, provision for impairment and reserved interest.

2.5.12 Foreign currencies

2.5.6 Property and equipment

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. All
differences are taken to the statement of comprehensive income.

All bank balances with maturity of three months or less from the date of placement are considered to be cash equivalents.

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation. Cost represents purchase cost
together with any incidental costs of acquisition. Land is not depreciated. The cost of property and equipment is
depreciated on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives are:

2.5.13  Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

- Vehicles

5 years

Financial assets:

- Furniture and office equipment

5 years

A financial asset (in whole or in part) is derecognised where:

- Buildings

25 years

(a) the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount. Gains and losses on disposals of property
and equipment are determined by reference to their carrying amounts and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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(b) the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; and
(c) either (i) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (ii) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets but has transferred control over the
asset or a proportion of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Summary of significant accounting polices (continued)

2.5 Summary of significant accounting polices (continued)

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities:
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. Where
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in statement of comprehensive income.
2.5.14 Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is an objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. If such evidence exists, the impairment loss is recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income.
2.5.15 Impairment of installment finance debtors
For installment finance debtors carried at amortised cost, the Company first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Company determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for
an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised
are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Loans together with
the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Company. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
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For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of the Company’s risk
exposures that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry, collateral type, past-due status and other
relevant factors.
Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the years
on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with, changes in related
observable data from year to year (such as changes in, asset prices, payment status, repeated requests for rescheduling
or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the group and their magnitude). The methodology and assumptions
used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual
loss experience.
2.5.16 Renegotiated instalment finance receivable
The Company closely monitors its non- performing loans in order to regularise them. If unsuccessful, the Company seeks
to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve extending the payment arrangements and
the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been renegotiated, the loan is no longer considered past due
subject to regulatory guidance. However, as per the new CBO circular issued on 27 December 2015, the Company has
to establish specific impairment allowance of 15% on all the restructured loans which are restructured in last 12 months.
Further, CBO through the circular issued on 20 January 2016, clarified to make such required provision in a phased
manner as follows.
• In case of restructured loans which are under standard category, a specific provision of 10% has to be created in the year
2015 and the balance 5% has to be created in the year 2016.
• If the restructured loans are under specially mentioned category, as the company is already required to hold a specific
provision of 5% on all specially mentioned loans as per FM 13, an additional provision of 5% for the year 2015 and further
5% for the year 2016 has to be created in respect of such specially mentioned restructured loans.
Management continuously reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely
to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the
loan’s original effective interest rate as per IFRS.
2.5.17 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has an obligation (legal or constructive) arising from a past event, and the
costs to settle the obligation are both probable and able to be reliably measured.
2.5.18 Dividend on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Company’s shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are paid.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

2 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3 OTHER INCOME

2.5 Summary of significant accounting polices (continued)
2.5.19 Fair values

2016
RO

2015
RO

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on
a number of accounting policies and methods. Where applicable, information about the assumptions made in determining
fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. Details are set out in note 25.

Interest on deposits

901,754

19,475

Documentation and related charges

341,648

386,189

•

Other income

150,731

191,344

30

7,481

1,394,163

604,489

2016

2015

RO

RO

3,895,193

4,273,600

Directors’ remuneration (note 24)

165,600

165,400

Advertising

116,047

71,586

Rent

41,490

40,558

Telephone and postage

41,928

38,008

Miscellaneous expenses

93,085

58,085

Professional fees

50,777

60,625

Fuel and maintenance

89,649

93,145

Directors’ sitting fees (note 24)

34,400

34,600

Printing and stationery

14,055

12,527

2.5.21 Segment reporting

Fees and other charges

53,265

55,618

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decisionmaker. The chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, has been identified as the Management Committee that makes strategic decisions.

Annual general meeting expenses

15,000

15,000

Insurance

51,750

51,738

Travelling

8,461

15,455

4,670,700

4,985,945

Salaries

2,445,080

2,234,403

Other benefits

1,192,450

1,681,345

Contribution to social insurance

129,391

130,530

Increase in employee end of service benefits

128,272

227,322

3,895,193

4,273,600

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

•

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

•

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

•

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

•

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

•

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

2.5.20 Earnings per share
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,
which comprises convertible notes.

2.5.22 Financial guarantees
In the ordinary course of business, the Company’s bankers issue financial guarantees to the Company’s customers on behalf
of the Company that are stated as contingent liabilities in the Companys’ financial statements till it is cancelled or expires.
In the event the bank invokes the guarantee, the Company pays the guarantee amount and debits the customers account,
which would form part of the main statement of financial position.
2.5.23 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Company intends to either settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Profit on sale of property and equipment

4 OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits

Salaries and other benefits comprise:
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At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016
5 TAXATION (CONTINUED)

5 TAXATION
2016
RO

2015
RO

Current year

762,581

1,029,607

Prior years

211,197

-

Deferred tax relating to temporary differences

(13,077)

(125,320)

960,701

904,287

Current year

762,581

1,029,607

Prior years

337,282

233,886

1,100,409

1,263,493

792,041

666,721

13,077

125,320

805,118

792,041

802,985

794,788

2,133

(2,747)

805,118

792,041

6,271,769

7,561,163

749,013

903,739

491

548

Income statement:

Current liability:

Deferred tax asset:
Movement for the year
At 31 December
The deferred asset comprises the following temporary differences
Provision for impairment of instalment finance receivable
Property and equipment
Following is the tax reconciliation for the year:
Accounting profit before tax
Tax at the applicable rate of 12% (2015: 12%)
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit:
Additional tax for prior years

211,197

-

960,701

904,287

6,271,769

7,561,163

4,095

4,570

(30,000)

(30,000)

1,039,518

1,031,915

40,445

19,895

7,325,827

8,587,543

13.11%

10.53%

The relationship between the tax expense and the accounting profit can be explained as follows:
Accounting profit
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit:
Income not considered taxable
Movement in allowance for impairment
Depreciation
Taxable profit
Effective rate of income tax

ANNUAL REPORT - 2016

The tax assessments for the years from 2010 to 2012 have been completed. The tax returns of the Company for the tax
years 2013 to 2015 have not yet been assessed with the Secretariat General for Taxation at the Ministry of Finance. In line
with the completed assessment years an additional tax for the open years has been created and the Management is of the
opinion that any further additional taxes, if any, related to the open tax years would not be significant to the Company’s
financial position as at 31 December 2016.
6 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Short term deposits

At 1 January

54

The difference between the applicable tax rate of 12% and the effective tax rate of 13.11% (2015: 10.53 %) arises due to the
tax effect of income not considered to be taxable and expenses that are not considered to be deductible. The adjustments
are based on the current understanding of the existing tax laws, regulations and practices. The tax rate applicable to the
Company is 12%. With effect from 1 January 2017, income tax rate is expected to be 15% (2016: 12%).

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)

2016
RO

2015
RO

33,000,000

25,000,000

470,673

Current accounts

-

51,823

44,122

33,522,496

25,044,122

Cash in hand

Short term deposits are placed with commercial banks and carries annual interest rates in the range of 0.05% to 4.65%.
7 DEPOSITS WITH THE CENTRAL BANK OF OMAN
The deposit represents a capital deposit with the Central Bank of Oman (“CBO”) made in accordance with the Banking
Law of 1974. The deposit is only repayable if the Company terminates its instalment finance business within the Sultanate
of Oman and settles all outstanding obligations and claims arising from that business.
8 INSTALLMENT FINANCE RECEIVABLES
2016
RO

2015
RO

211,125,526

220,933,085

59,293,573

55,711,302

270,419,099

276,644,387

(22,800,641)

(21,806,739)

247,618,458

254,837,648

(8,723,150)

(8,658,023)

238,895,308

246,179,625

Gross investment in finance leases:
Corporate debtors
Retail debtors
Less: unearned finance income

Less: Provision for impairment

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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At 31 December 2016

8 INSTALLMENT FINANCE RECEIVABLES (continued)

8 INSTALLMENT FINANCE RECEIVABLES (continued)
2016

2015

Gross lease
receivable
RO

Present value
of lease
receivables
RO

Gross lease
receivable
RO

Present value
of lease
receivables
RO

Not later than one year

126,893,882

116,689,787

123,512,600

112,698,044

Later than one year and not later than three years

112,130,147

101,593,678

117,034,124

107,593,986

31,395,070

29,334,993

36,097,663

34,545,618

270,419,099

247,618,458

276,644,387

254,837,648

Later than three years

Instalment finance receivables are stated net of accumulated provision for impairment and reserved finance interest. The
movement in provision for impairment and reserved finance interest for the year is analysed as follows:
2016
RO

2015
RO

Provision for impairment of instalment finance receivables:

The instalment finance receivable are denominated in Rial Omani and, are charged at an effective annual interest rate of
7.08% (2015: 7.67%). The effective annual interest rate bands of instalment finance receivable are as follows:
2016
RO

2015
RO

Less than 10%

234,655,850

245,313,761

More than 10%

12,962,608

9,523,887

247,618,458

254,837,648

2016

2015

RO

RO

Prepaid expenses

669,980

662,662

Other receivables

532,296

72,400

1,202,276

735,062

9. OTHER ASSETS AND PREPAYMENTS

At 1 January

8,594,087

7,562,172

Provided during the year

1,916,302

2,415,246

Released during the year

(315,302)

(415,246)

(1,532,441)

(968,085)

8,662,646

8,594,087

63,936

89,201

Reserved during the year

134,470

107,013

Additions

-

Released during the year

(57,255)

(70,413)

Disposals

-

Amounts written off

(80,647)

(61,865)

60,504

63,936

8,723,150

8,658,023

Amounts written off
At 31 December
Reserved finance interest

10 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Vehicles
RO

Capital/
construction
work in
progress
RO

Total
RO

325,599

43,013

2,791,922

48,905

-

-

48,905

(2,517)

-

-

(2,517)

Land and
building
RO

Furniture
and office
equipment
RO

1,262,267

1,161,043

Cost

At 1 January

At 31 December
Total provision for impairment

Instalment finance receivables include amounts advanced to clients, interest on the amounts advanced and related charges.
In the event of default in the settlement of debts, the Company has recourse to the client.

1 January 2016

31 December 2016

1,262,267

1,207,431

325,599

43,013

2,838,310

260,929

1,007,882

208,275

-

1,477,086

40,949

64,645

58,077

-

163,671

-

(2,267)

-

-

(2,267)

Depreciation
1 January 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals
31 December 2016

301,878

1,070,260

266,352

-

1,638,490

960,389

137,171

59,247

43,013

1,199,820

Net book value
Finance interest is reserved by the Company to comply with the rules, regulations and guidelines issued by the Central Bank
of Oman against impaired instalment finance receivables. As at 31 December 2016, instalment finance receivable on which
interest is not being accrued, or where interest is reserved, amounted to RO 2,350,143 (2015: RO 1,573,480).
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10 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13 TERM LOANS
Land and
building

Furniture
and office
equipment

Vehicles

RO

RO

RO

Capital /
Construction
work in
progress
RO

1,262,267

1,113,101

312,794

33,113

2,721,275

47,942

38,905

9,900

96,747

RO

Cost
1 January 2015
Additions

-

Disposals

-

-

(26,100)

1,262,267

1,161,043

325,599

219,980

943,867

173,066

40,949

64,015

31 December 2015

-

(26,100)

Charge for the year
Disposals
31 December 2015

RO

RO

Long term loans – RO

2.80% to 4.50%

62,875,000

66,700,000

Long term loans – US $

2.78% to 3.78%

48,017,750

46,981,440

110,892,750

113,681,440

1,336,913

The related maturity profile and interest rate risk are given in notes 26 and 27 respectively.

59,585

-

164,549

-

(24,376)

-

(24,376)

260,929

1,007,882

208,275

-

1,477,086

153,161

interest rate

-

-

1,001,338

2015

2,791,922

43,013

Net book value
31 December 2015

2016

The Company has entered into long term loan facility agreements with local commercial banks and foreign banks. The
lenders hold a pari passu charge over all the assets of the Company for the credit facilities granted. In addition, the
Company is required to comply with certain financial covenants.

Depreciation
1 January 2015

Annual
Total

117,324

43,013

1,314,836

14 OTHER LIABILITIES
2016
RO

2015
RO

Accounts payable

6,256,695

9,790,420

Accrued expenses and other payables

3,639,839

2,970,958

Directors’ remuneration (notes 4 and 24)

165,600

165,400

Employee end of service benefits

997,212

868,940

11,059,346

13,795,718

11 OVER DRAFT AND SHORT TERM LOANS

Short term loans

2016
RO

2015
RO

76,000,000

68,750,000

-

Overdrafts

76,000,000

447,998

During the year 2016, unclaimed dividend and unclaimed bond interest in the amount of RO 6,112 (2015: RO 4,030) has been
transferred to Investors Trust Fund with Capital Market Authority.
The movement in employee end of service benefits during the year is as follows:
2016
RO

2015
RO

At 1 January

868,940

641,618

Provided during the year (note 4)

128,272

227,322

At 31 December

997,212

868,940

69,197,998

Over drafts and short term loans are obtained from local commercial banks with an outstanding against these loans at
the reporting date of RO 76 million (2015: RO 69.198 million) and these are secured by a registered mortgage over the
Company’s assets. Short term loans carry interest at average interest rate of 2.97% (2015: 2.01%) per annum.
12 DEPOSITS
No deposits are outstanding from related parties as at 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil). Deposits carry interest in the range of
3% to 4% (2015: 2.50% to 4%). The deposits are due to mature within 39 months from the reporting date.

Contingent liabilities
At 31 December 2016, there were contingent liabilities of RO 2,019,235 (2015: RO 5,345,091) in respect of guarantees issued
in the normal course of business on behalf of customers from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise.
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15 SHARE CAPITAL

19 DIVIDENDS PAID AND PROPOSED
2016
RO

2015
RO

Authorised - shares of RO 0.100 each

30,000,000

30,000,000

Issued and fully paid - shares of RO 0.100 each

26,786,354

24,567,552

As per the mandate given to the company, the regulatory capital requirement of RO 25 million before end of April 2017
has been met with the issuance of the stock dividend and conversion of compulsorily convertible bonds / stock bonds.
Shareholders who own 10% or more of the Company’s share capital are as follows:
2016
%
Of holding

2016
Number of
shares

2015
%
of holding

2015
Number of
shares

Muscat Overseas Company LLC

18.10%

48,470,689

18.08%

44,415,760

Ministry of Defence Pension Fund

10.52%

28,185,840

10.54%

25,888,901

Civil Service Employees Pension Fund

10.49%

28,107,580

10.51%

25,820,913

Dividend is not accounted for until it has been approved at the Annual General Meeting. At the meeting on 12 February
2017, the Board of Directors proposed a dividend of 25% of the paid up capital of the company comprising a cash
dividend of 17% (RO 0.0170 per ordinary share) amounting to RO 4,553,680.180, and 8% compulsorily convertible
unsecured bonus stock bonds totalling to 21,429,083 bonds of RO 0.100 each amounting to RO 2,142,908/- . This will be
submitted for the formal approval at the Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in March 2017. These bonus
stock bonds will carry an annual coupon rate of 4%, payable semi- annually. The interest will be calculated on the basis of
365 days per year on the nominal value of the bonus stock bond. These bonus stock bonds will be unsecured and listed
on the Muscat Securities Market (MSM).
The bonus stock bonds will be compulsorily converted into specific number of equity shares at the end of 60 months
from the date of listing at 80% of the weighted average closing price of the company’s equity traded on the MSM over
the preceding three months prior to the record date of such conversion, subject to a minimum 85% of the book value as
per the audited accounts of the company for the immediately preceding financial year of the company. A cash dividend
of 17% amounting to RO 4,176,484, 3% stock dividend of RO 737,027 and compulsorily convertible bonds amounting
to RO 1,228,378 were approved at the Annual General Meeting held in March 2016 and subsequently cash dividend was
paid and stock dividend and compulsorily convertible bonds were issued to the shareholders.
20 COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE BONDS
2016

2015

RO

RO

16 SHARE PREMIUM RESERVE
During the year, shareholders at the Annual General Meeting approved an issuance of compulsorily convertible bonds of
12,283,776 Bonds of RO 0.100 each (2015: 18,374,298 bonds of RO 0.100 each) and a stock dividend of 7,370,266 shares
of RO 0.100 each (2015: 4,593,575 shares of RO 0.100 each) by utilising the share premium reserve account (note 19).
Further, during the year an amount of RO 2,193,027 has been transferred to share premium account on the conversion of
fourth tranche of compulsorily convertible bonds issued in 2012 into equity shares and on conversion of the bonus stock
bonds issued in 2014. In addition, an amount of RO 739,601 (2015: RO 533,227) has been transferred to legal reserve
from share premium account.
17 LEGAL RESERVE
Article 106 of the Commercial Companies Law 1974 requires that 10% of the profit for the year be transferred to the legal
reserve. At 31 December 2016, the Company has transferred RO 739,601 (2015: RO 533,227) to legal reserve from the share
premium account to make the legal reserve equal to one third of the issued share capital on the reporting date. The reserve
is not available for distribution.
18 EXCHANGE RESERVE
The exchange reserve has been created in accordance with the directives of the Central Bank of Oman via circular FM 11
(“the Circular”) dated 31 March 2003 in respect of un-hedged long-term foreign currency loans. In accordance with the
requirements of the Circular, 20% exchange reserve shall be created against any foreign currency borrowings which exceeds
40% of the net worth as per the previous financial year audited financial statements. 10% of this exchange reserve shall
be created at the end of the year of the borrowing and 2.5% in each subsequent years. This reserve is not available for
distribution.
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Compulsorily convertible bonds – 2012

(i)

2,000,000

4,000,000

Compulsorily convertible bonus bonds – 2013

(ii)

-

1,674,802

Compulsorily convertible bonus bonds – 2014

(iii)

1,837,430

1,837,430

Compulsorily convertible bonus bonds – 2015

(iv)

1,228,378

-

5,065,808

7,512,232

(i)		 On 22 April 2012, 100,000,000 compulsorily convertible unsecured bonds of RO 0.100 each in the amount of RO
10,000,000 were issued to the shareholders on rights basis and during April 2012 the allotments were done. These bonds
carry an annual coupon rate of 5.5%, payable semi annually. The interest is calculated on the basis of 365 days per year
on the nominal value of the bond. These bonds are unsecured and listed on the MSM. The bonds will be compulsorily
converted into specific number of equity shares progressively over a period of five years from the date of listing at 80% of
the weighted average closing price of the Company’s traded equity shares on the MSM over the preceding three months
prior to the record date of such conversion, subject to a minimum 85% of the book value as per the audited accounts of
the Company for the immediately preceding financial year of the Company.
		 First, second, third and fourth tranches of bonds worth RO 2 million each were converted into equity shares @ RO 0.278,
RO 0.314, RO 0.264 and RO.0.248 in 2013, 2014, 2015 and 2016 respectively. These bonds are converted at 80% of
the weighted average closing price of the Company’s equity shares traded on the MSM over the preceding three months
prior to the record date of such conversion.
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20 COMPULSORILY CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued)

22 DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

(ii)		 In March 2014, the shareholders at the AGM approved 7.5% compulsorily convertible unsecured bonus stock bonds
totalling to 16,748,024 bonds of RO 0.100 each amounting to RO 1,674,802 for the year 2013. These bonus stock bonds
carry an annual coupon rate of 5%, payable semi-annually. The interest is calculated on the basis of 365 days per year on
the nominal value of the bonus stock bond. These bonus stock bonds are unsecured and listed on the MSM. The bonus
stock bonds will be compulsorily converted into specific number of equity shares at the end of 24 months from the date
of listing at 80% of the weighted average closing price of the Company’s equity traded on the MSM over the preceding
three months prior to the record date of such conversion, subject to a minimum 85% of the book value as per the audited
accounts of the Company for the immediately preceding financial year of the company.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (after
adjusting interest on the convertible bonds, net of tax) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

		 During the year 2016, the bonus stock bond of RO 1,674,802 were converted into equity shares @ RO 0.248 being
80% of the weighted average closing price of the Company’s equity shares traded on the MSM over the preceding three
months prior to the record date of such conversion.
iii)		 In March 2015, the shareholders at the AGM approved 8% compulsorily convertible unsecured bonus stock bonds
totalling to 18,374,298 bonds of RO 0.100 each amounting to RO 1,837,430. These bonus stock bonds carry an annual
coupon rate of 4%, payable semi annually. The interest is calculated on the basis of 365 days per year on the nominal
value of the bonus stock bond. These bonus stock bonds will be unsecured and listed on the MSM. The bonus stock
bonds will be compulsorily converted into specific number of equity shares at the end of 36 months from the date of
listing at 80% of the weighted average closing price of the company’s equity traded on the MSM over the preceding
three months prior to the record date of such conversion, subject to a minimum 85% of the book value as per the audited
accounts of the company for the immediately preceding financial year of the company.
iv) In March 2016, the shareholders at the AGM approved 5 % compulsorily convertible unsecured bonus stock bonds
totalling to 12,283,776 bonds of RO 0.100 each amounting to RO 1,228,378. These bonus stock bonds carry an annual
coupon rate of 4%, payable semi annually. The interest is calculated on the basis of 365 days per year on the nominal
value of the bonus stock bond. These bonus stock bonds are unsecured and listed on the MSM. The bonus stock bonds
will be compulsorily converted into specific number of equity shares at the end of 36 months from the date of listing at
80% of the weighted average closing price of the company’s equity traded on the MSM over the preceding three months
prior to the record date of such conversion, subject to a minimum 85% of the book value as per the audited accounts of
the company for the immediately preceding financial year of the company.
		 As approved by the regulatory authority and more fully explained in note 20, the unsecured fully compulsorily convertible
bonds amounting to RO 5,065,808 (2015: RO 7,512,232) are treated as part of the net worth for computing all regulatory
limits. Accordingly, the net worth as of 31 December 2016 for all regulatory purposes is RO 67,943,994 (2015: RO
66,830,665).

Profit after tax (RO)

2016

2015

5,311,068

6,656,876

245,573

358,440

5,556,641

7,015,316

285,485,786

268,957,078

0.019

0.026

Add: Interest on bonds (RO)
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (diluted) (RO)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) (Nos)
Diluted earnings per share (RO)

23 SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Company operates in the finance industry and its operations are confined to the Sultanate of Oman. Detail regarding
the Company’s corporate and retail loans are included in note 8. None of the Company’s single customer contributed
more than 10% of its instalment finance income.
The Chief Operating Decision Maker considers the business of the Company as one operating segment and monitors only
revenue and provision for impairment for the corporate and retail segment.
24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company has entered into transactions in the ordinary course of business with major shareholders and other related
parties in which certain directors have a significant influence and with senior management. Pricing policies and the terms
of the transactions are approved by the Company’s board of directors and are considered by mutually agreed terms and
are consistent with the standard terms applied by the Company.
Transactions with related parties or holders of 10% or more of the Company’s shares or their family members, included in
the statement of profit or loss are as follows:
2016

2015

RO

RO

Instalment finance income (major shareholder)

108,550

170,690

Directors’ sitting fees and remuneration

200,000

200,000

21 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year by the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year as follows:

Net profit for the year (RO)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (Nos)
Basic earnings per share (RO)

2016

2015

5,311,068

6,656,876

262,924,290

253,045,790

0.020

0.026

-

Directors’ traveling expenses
Employee’s related cost of senior management

1,658,121

Interest on deposits from other related parties

-

3,596
1,748,395
15,315

Details of Directors’ remuneration and sitting fee are disclosed in notes 4 and 14.
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40,090,468
Cumulative gap in maturity

9,808,706 (12,573,630) (22,208,918)

43,747,918

61,723,657

61,723,657
17,975,739
65,956,836
(9,635,288)
40,090,468 (30,281,762)
Gap in maturity

(22,382,336)

63,978,595 275,875,018
3,310,593
36,505,666
50,613,069
45,529,518
49,847,753
26,089,824
Total liabilities and equity

62,878,186
62,878,186
Equity

1,100,409
1,100,409
Income tax payable

-

-

11,059,346
1,310,593
2,083,458
911,571
3,222,753
Other liabilities

2,858,824

672,147

5,065,808
3,065,808
Compulsorily convertible bonds

6,125,000
Term loans

10,870,500

2,000,000

110,892,750
31,356,400
48,920,690

8,878,519
1,000,000
Deposits

360,500

4,737,211

780,808

24,500,000
39,500,000
12,000,000
Short term loans

Liabilities and equity

13,620,160

-

2,000,000

-

76,000,000

2,254,938 275,875,018
21,286,332
40,977,781 102,462,502
23,147,182
19,565,991
66,180,292
Total assets

805,118
805,118
-

1,202,276
170,064
235,634
155,046

-

-

Deferred tax asset

19,019,830
32,562,425

546,161

1,199,820

238,895,308

250,000
-

-

-

1 to 3
Years
RO

-

Deposits with CBO

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Company had no financial instruments which were recorded at fair values.

-

techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on
observable market data.

-

Level 3:		

33,522,496

other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable,
either directly or indirectly; and

Cash and bank balances

Level 2:		

Assets

quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

4 to 6 6 months to
months
1 year
RO
RO

Level 1:		

26 MATURITY PROFILE OF THE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

2 to 3
months
RO

Fair value hierarchy

Up to
1 month
RO

It is the Company’s intention to hold loans and advances to customers till maturity. As a result, the fair value of performing
loans is arrived at using the discounted cash flow analysis based on a discount rate equal to the prevailing market rates of
interest for loans having similar terms and conditions. The Company considers that the fair value of financial instruments at
31 December 2016 and 2015 are not significantly different to their carrying value at each of those dates.

The maturity profile of the assets, liabilities and equity as of 31 December 2016 was as follows:

25 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

95,371

165,400

Other assets and prepayments

2,817,122

1,199,820

165,600

-

1,984,386

-

165,400

-

2,817,122

-

165,600

Property and equipment

1,984,386

-

RO

21,286,332

RO

40,742,147 102,292,438

RO

22,992,136

RO

Instalment finance receivable

Payables

-

Receivables

-

Payables

Non-fixed
maturity
RO

Receivables

Over
3 years
RO

Members of the Board of Directors

2015

250,000

2016

-

At 31 December 2016, the following balances were outstanding of related parties or holders of 10% or more of the Company’s
shares:

33,522,496

Total
RO

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
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35,529,721
35,529,721

Gap in maturity
Cumulative gap in maturity

63,459,983

-

-

347,184

3,674,802

8,047,125

2,640,872

48,750,000

21,403,712

-

160,776

-

21,242,936

-

-

41,062,713

)993,558(

5,532,992 )42,056,271(

18,631,960

-

-

3,726,335

-

2,905,625

1,000,000

11,000,000

24,164,952

-

122,721

-

24,042,231

-

-

-

-

1,996

-

-

10,554,053

11,547,611

29,539,519

-

-

812,204

-

27,722,315

35,162,475

24,608,422

82,987,559

-

-

3,883,254

3,837,430

72,406,375

1,005,000 2,860,500

-

41,087,130 107,595,981

-

310,143

-

40,776,987 107,593,985

-

-

58,265,049

792,041

735,062

1,314,836

246,179,625

210,000

25,044,122

Total
RO

59,318,433

1,263,493

13,795,718

7,512,232

113,681,440

9,506,372

69,197,998

60,581,926 274,275,686

59,318,433

1,263,493

-

-

-

-

-

2,316,877 274,275,686

792,041

-

1,314,836

-

210,000

-

Non-fixed
maturity
RO

23,102,574 )58,265,049(

3,244,201

-

-

1,244,201

-

-

2,000,000

-

26,346,775

-

-

-

26,346,775

-

-

Over
3 years
RO

-

Deferred tax asset

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)

-

Income tax payable

3,096,023

47,287,147

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

18,633,410

47,287,147 (28,653,737) (15,537,387)

49,701,498
Interest rate sensitivity gap

44,857,371

-

-

-

-

48,920,690

780,808

69,856,000

-

-

-

2,000,000

13,620,160

4,737,211

-

Total liabilities and equity

-

-

Other liabilities

Equity

-

16,995,500

Term loans
Compulsorily convertible bonds

1,360,500

Deposits

24,500,000

-

54,762,393

51,666,370

34,422,208

-

-

-

3,065,808

31,356,400

-

86,088,578

-

-

-

86,088,578

-

71,778,904

805,118

1,202,276

1,199,820

238,895,308

33,772,496

62,878,186

1,100,409

11,059,346

5,065,808

110,892,750

8,878,519

76,000,000

75,037,941 275,875,018

62,878,186

1,100,409

11,059,346

-

-

-

-

3,259,037 275,875,018

805,118

1,202,276

1,199,820

-

51,823

17,016,511 (71,778,904)

2,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

2,000,000

-

19,016,511

-

-

-

18,766,511

250,000

At 31 December 2016

51,500,000

34,164,111

-

-

-

34,164,111

-

At 31 December 2016

Short term loans

16,203,634

-

-

-

16,203,634

-
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Liabilities and equity

117,143,147

-

Other assets and prepayments

Total assets

-

83,672,474

33,470,673

Property and equipment

Instalment finance receivable

Assets
Cash and bank balances including deposit
with central bank

The interest rate charged and paid by the Company are similar to the prevailing market interest rates. The Company’s interest rate sensitivity position,
based on the contractual re-pricing at 31 December 2016 is set out below:
Floating
rate or
within three
4 to 6 6 months to
1 to 3
Over Non interest
months
Months
one year
years
3 years
sensitive
Total
RO
RO
RO
RO
RO
RO
RO

27 INTEREST RATE RISK

15,830,538

-

Equity
Total liabilities and equity

-

3,782,540

-

2,600,000

-

9,447,998

51,360,259

-

139,426

-

26,176,711

-

25,044,122

Income tax payable

Other liabilities

Compulsorily convertible bonds

Term loans

Deposits

Short term loans

Liabilities and equity

Total assets

Deferred tax asset

Other assets and prepayments

Property and equipment

Instalment finance receivable

Deposits with CBO

Cash and bank balances

Assets

The maturity profile of the assets, liabilities and equity as of 31 December 2015 is as follows:
Up to
2 to 3
4 to 6
6 months
1 to 3
1 month
months
months
to 1 year
Years
RO
RO
RO
RO
RO

26 MATURITY PROFILE OF THE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)
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At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016
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18,635,092 )79,003,815(

79,003,815

16,822,843

60,368,723

81,889,876 274,275,686
2,000,000

• Liquidity risk

5,149,147

43,545,880

80,816,777 )42,420,044(

80,816,777 38,396,733

• Market risk

28,727,315

75,266,875

• Credit risk

59,437,997
26,953,623

59,318,433
59,318,433
-

1,263,493
1,263,493
-

-

-

-

-

13,795,718
13,795,718
-

7,512,232
7,512,232
-

113,681,440
27,722,315
5,505,625

8,047,125

72,406,375

-

9,506,372
2,000,000
2,860,500
1,005,000
2,640,872

48,750,000
20,447,998

1,000,000

69,197,998
-

2,886,061 274,275,686
107,770,400 17,017,953 33,876,462 92,089,718 20,635,092

792,041
792,041
-

735,062
735,062
-

1,314,836
-

-

-

-

1,314,836

246,179,625
20,425,092
92,089,718
33,876,462
17,017,953
82,770,400

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Total liabilities and equity

Equity

Income tax payable

Other liabilities

Compulsorily convertible bonds

Term loans

Deposits

Short term loans

Liabilities and equity

Total assets

Deferred tax asset

Other assets and prepayments

Property and equipment

210,000
25,000,000
Cash and bank balances including deposit
with central bank

Assets
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The primary objective of the risk management system is to safeguard the Company’s capital, its financial resources and
from various risks. The Company has exposure to the following risk from its use of financial instruments:

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management
framework. The Board has established the policies and procedures and internal checks and balances to keep the risk at
an acceptable level.
(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss. The Company manages credit risk by setting limits for individual borrowers, monitoring credit
exposures, limiting transactions with specific counter parties and assessing continually the creditworthiness of counter
parties. In addition, the Company obtains security where appropriate, enters into collateral arrangements with counter
parties, and limits the duration of the exposures.
Exposure to credit before collateral held or other credit enhancements
The credit exposure of the Company at 31 December is as follows:
2016
RO

2015
RO

522,496

44,122

33,250,000

25,210,000

238,895,308

246,179,625

6,306

32,813

9,523,618

913,607

282,197,728

272,380,167

8,669,126

8,118,317

Past due 90 – 179 days

2,350,143

1,573,480

Past due 180 – 269 days

-

-

2,350,143

1,573,480

Neither past due nor impaired

236,599,189

245,145,851

Total instalment finance debtors

247,618,458

254,837,648

Bank balances
Deposit with CBO and commercial banks
Instalment finance receivables
Other receivables
Credit risk exposure relating to off balance sheet items
Approved lease commitment at 31 December
Total exposure

Instalment finance receivable

44,122 25,254,122

RO
RO
RO
RO
RO
RO
RO

The Company’s interest sensitivity position based on contractual repricing arrangements at 31 December 2015 is as follows:
Floating
4 to 6
6 months
1 to 3
Over Non interest
rate or within
Months to one year
years
3 years
sensitive
three months

27 INTEREST RATE RISK (continued)

Total

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Classification of instalment finance receivables
Instalment finance debtors
Past due 1 - 89 days but not impaired
Impaired

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
The Company treats an instalment finance receivables as non-performing as per the established norms of the Central Bank
of Oman and creates specific impairment allowances individually based on the regulatory guidelines. The Company as per
International Financial Reporting Standard establishes specific allowances for all impaired instalment finance receivables
when the estimated value of the instalment finance receivables is less than its recorded value, based on discounting of
expected future cash flows. In addition collective provision is also created. The Company writes off an instalment finance
receivables, when it determines that the instalment finance receivables is uncollectible. This determination is reached after
considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the customer’s financial position such that the
borrower can no longer pay the obligation, or proceeds from the sale of the asset or collateral security will not be sufficient
to pay back the entire exposure. Upon approval from the Board of Directors, the amount is written off.

2016
RO

2015
RO

(509,210)

(491,225)

Collective

(8,213,940)

(8,166,798)

Total allowance for impairment

(8,723,150)

(8,658,023)

Instalment finance receivables

238,895,308

246,179,625

Classification of instalment finance receivables (continued)
Less: provision for impairment:
Specific

Collateral securities

Risk concentrations of the maximum exposure to credit risk
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be
similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of
the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographic location. There is no significant
industry concentration. Concentration of risk is managed by client/counterparty and by industry sector exposures. There
is no significant credit exposure relating to instalment finance receivable to any single counterparty as at 31 December
2016 and 2015. An industry sector analysis of the Company’s instalment finance receivable before taking into account
collateral held is as follows:
Gross maximum
exposure

Gross maximum
exposure

2016

2015

RO’000

RO’000

Personal loans

50,148

47,486

Business loans - Services & Other Sectors

86,532

105,022

- Construction

47,525

47,425

- Trading

46,315

37,441

- Manufacturing

17,098

17,464

247,618

254,838

Delinquency risk refers to instalment finance receivables and other credit exposures that have become non-performing
during the period of the credit term. An instalment finance receivables is considered impaired when, in the management’s
opinion, it can no longer be reasonably assured that it will be able to collect the full amount of principal and interest
when due.
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Settlement risk
The settlement risk is the risk of loss due to the failure of a Company to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities
or other assets as contractually agreed. To avoid settlement risks, the Company ensures that all control systems are in
place to keep the errors to a minimum.
(b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. The business of lending has
an inherent risk of liquidity arising from the mismatch of tenure of funds borrowed vis-à-vis lent, in addition to unforeseen
adverse recovery patterns.
The Company is constantly on the vigil and judiciously manages the funds with an innovate mix of borrowing instruments.
Liabilities are contracted and structured based on the behavioral pattern of the assets in terms of maturity and re-pricing
structure. To limit the liquidity risk, the management through their carefully drawn up strategies, has diversified sources of
funds, avoids undue concentration on a single lender and manages its collection in a systematic manner.
During the year, the Company completed medium to long term funding arrangements that have effectively addressed
and mitigated the apparent mismatch in the maturity of assets and liabilities. Cash flows are monitored continuously and
appropriate steps are taken to set right mismatches if any, to address the liquidity risk.
Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities

Delinquency risk

70

The Company holds collateral securities against the instalment finance debtor in the form of mortgage interests over
property. Estimate of fair value are based on the value of the collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, except when an
instalment finance debtor is individually assessed as impaired. The fair value of the collateral considered is restricted to a
maximum amount of secured instalment finance receivable. At 31 December 2016, the impairment losses would have not
changed significantly had the collaterals not been obtained by the Company for impaired assets.

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilities as at 31 December 2016 based on contractual
repayment arrangements. The contractual maturities of liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date and after taking into account of the effective maturities as
indicated by the Company’s deposit retention history and the availability of liquid funds.

Al-Omaniya Financial Services (SAOG)
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At 31 December 2016

At 31 December 2016

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table shows the sensitivity to the Company’s net interest income that would result out of a possible change
in interest rates
Sensitivity to net interest / income (RO ‘000)
Change in basis
2016
2015
points
Change in interest rate

Carrying Gross nominal
amount
outflow
RO
RO
Short term loans
Deposits
Term loans
Compulsorily convertible bonds
Other liabilities
Total

Within 3
months
RO

3 - 12
months
RO

Over
1 year
RO

Increase in interest rate

+100 bps

(1,389)

(1,359)

2,400,657

Increase in interest rate

+150 bps

(2,083)

(2,038)

64,347,581

32,405,253

Decrease in interest rate

- 25 bps

347

340

-

2,128,497

3,225,394

11,059,346

6,081,577

1,583,718

3,394,051

216,407,354

76,539,823

98,442,176

41,425,355

76,000,000

76,507,017

51,762,110

24,744,907

-

8,878,519

9,458,290

1,420,160

5,637,473

110,892,755

114,028,810

17,275,976

5,065,807

5,353,891

11,059,346
211,896,427

The maturity profile of assets, liabilities and equity is set out in note 26.
Residual contractual maturities of financial liabilities as of 31 December 2015:

Short term loans
Deposits
Term loans
Compulsorily convertible bonds
Other liabilities
Total

Carrying
amount

Gross
nominal
outflow

Within 3
months

3 - 12
months

Over 1 year

RO

RO

RO

RO

RO

69,197,998

69,614,841

20,516,302

49,098,539

-

9,506,372

10,414,273

1,070,191

3,813,539

5,530,543

113,681,440

118,197,241

5,761,778

36,822,399

75,613,064

7,512,232

7,937,845

-

3,940,169

3,997,676

13,795,718

13,795,718

7,508,875

1,159,388

5,127,455

213,693,760

219,959,918

34,857,146

94,834,034

90,268,738

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates will
affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future profitability of the fair values of
financial instruments. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as a result of mismatches of interest rate, repricing of
assets and liabilities and unfunded instruments that mature or re-price in a given period. The Company manages this risk
by matching the re-pricing of assets and liabilities through risk management strategies.
Revision in the interest rates by the existing lenders and changes in the interest rates consequent to economic forces is
a risk faced by any financial institution. Though the Company’s loan portfolio comprises predominantly of fixed interest
rates, the Company manages its treasury in such a way that the targeted margin is maintained and the risk is kept within
acceptable levels.
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(d) Operational risk
The Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company’s
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks
such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behaviour.
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s operations and are faced by all business entities.
The Company has put in place the mechanism to minimise operational risk by way of effective internal control systems,
systems review and an on-going internal audit programme. The internal auditors of the Company undertake comprehensive
audits and report directly to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Audit Committee of the Board review the internal audit
reports, the adequacy of the internal controls and report on the same to the Board.
(e) Capital management
The Company’s primary objective of capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in business conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015.
The Company’s lead regulator Central Bank of Oman sets and monitors capital requirement as a whole. In implementing
current capital requirement, the Central Bank of Oman requires the Company to progressively increase its minimum paid up
share capital by RO 1 million to reach RO 25 million by April 2017. The Company’s current paid up capital is RO 26,786,354 at
the current period ending after the conversion of the first to fourth tranches (RO 2 Million each ) of the Bonds issued in 2012,
compulsory conversion of the Bonus stock bonds issued in 2013 and after including the stock dividend of Ro.737,027/approved by shareholders at the AGM held in March 2016. The company has already achieved the capital requirement set
out by CBO well before the scheduled time.
As approved by the regulatory authority and more fully explained in note 20, the unsecured fully compulsorily convertible
bonds are treated as part of the net worth for computing all regulatory limits.
Accordingly, the networth as of 31 December 2016 for all regulatory purposes is RO 67,943,994 (2015: RO 66,830,665).
(f) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Company’s assets and liabilities are denominated in Rial Omani and hence there is no currency risk. The foreign currency
loan is denominated in US Dollar which is effectively pegged to Rial Omani.
29 COMPARATIVES
Certain comparative information is re-presented to conform to the presentation adopted in current year.
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